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Opinion
LARSON, D. J.
*1 In this action, the plaintiffs alleged that past discriminatory hiring practices had created an all-white fire department in
Minneapolis, and that the present hiring practices for the position of fire fighter with that department do not overcome the
continuing effects of past discrimination. The Court, in accordance with these findings, concludes that the present all-white
Minneapolis Fire Department is the result of a pattern and practice of discrimination and that recent changes made in hiring
practices do not overcome the continuing effect of that past discrimination.
2. This action was initiated late in September, 1970. On November 5, 1970, a preliminary injunction was issued which
enjoined giving of fire fighter examinations then scheduled for November 16, 1970, and which enjoined permanent hiring of
fire fighters until the plaintiffs’ complaint had been heard and decided on the merits.
3. Testimony was heard by the Court on March 1 and 2, 1971 on the present motion for injunctive relief. The parties also
submitted a statement of stipulated facts and stipulated to the admissibility of numerous exhibits.
4. The plaintiff Gerald Carter is a 29-year old Black resident of the City of Minneapolis. He applied for a fire fighter job with
the Minneapolis Fire Department during the summer of 1970.
5. The plaintiff Ward Mitchell is a 23-year old Black resident of the City of Minneapolis. He applied for the position of fire
fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department during the summer of 1970.
6. The plaintiff, Benjamin McHie, is a 22-year old Black resident of the City of Minneapolis. He was contacted during the
summer of 1970 by representatives of MOER, the local anti-poverty agency, regarding the possibility of applying for the fire
fighter position. He refused to apply, because he felt that his chances of becoming a fire fighter were very slim, especially
since there were no Black fire fighters.
7. Plaintiffs Carter and Mitchell represent the class of all minority (Black, Indian-American and Spanish-surnamed
American) applicants for the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department.
8. Plaintiff McHie represents a class of minority persons who felt that there was insufficient opportunity for a minority person
to become a fire fighter and therefore refused or neglected to seek such employment.
9. The plaintiff Herbert Hill III was, at the time this action was commenced and at the time of the hearing on the motion for a
preliminary injunction, a Black resident of Minneapolis who had moved to this city after completing military service early in
1970. He had attempted to apply for the fire fighter position by submitting an application to unknown persons at the South
Side Community Center. This application was never received by the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission. His present
whereabouts are not known.
10. The plaintiff Willie Harris was, at the time this action commenced and at the time of the hearing on the motion for
preliminary injunction, a Black resident of Minneapolis who had moved to this City after completing military service early in
1970. He had attempted to apply for the fire fighter position by submitting an application to unknown persons at the South
Side Community Center. This application was never received by the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission. His present
whereabouts are not known.
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*2 11. The plaintiffs Harris and Hill represent a class of persons who seek civil service employment in Minneapolis and who
are veterans, but who are unable to qualify for a veterans preference pursuant to M. S. A. § 197.45 because they have not
lived in the State of Minnesota and in the City of Minneapolis for a period of five years.
12. The intervening plaintiff, the Minneapolis Commission on Human Relations, is a legally constituted commission of the
City of Minneapolis, the chief duty of which is implementing the policies of the City of Minneapolis in the field of human
relations and of protecting and promoting the civil rights of the citizens of the City of Minneapolis.
13. The defendants Hugh Gallagher, Ward Canfield, and Gleason Glover are the Commissioners of the Civil Service
Commission of the City of Minneapolis. In that capacity, they are responsible for recruiting, testing and certifying all
applicants for employment in the classified service in the City of Minneapolis, including all members of the Minneapolis Fire
Department.
14. The defendant, John Proctor, was, at the time this lawsuit was initiated, the Personnel Director of the Personnel
Department of the Civil Service Commission of the City of Minneapolis. In that capacity he was responsible to the
Commissioners for the recruitment, testing, and certification of all applicants for employment in the classified service in the
City of Minneapolis, including all members of the Minneapolis Fire Department.
15. The defendant Elisabeth A. M. White is the supervisor of Personnel Selection in the Personnel Department of the
Minneapolis Civil Service Commission. In that capacity she has the immediate responsibility for direct supervision of those
Civil Service employees who recruit, examine and certify applicants for employment in the classified service of the City of
Minneapolis, including all members of the Minneapolis Fire Department. During the past year, she has exercised close
supervision over the recruitment of applicants for fire fighter, the development of the examination plan for that position, and
the development of the written examination to be used for fire fighter applicants.
16. The defendant Kenneth W. Hall is the chief of the Minneapolis Fire Department. He has held that position since 1962. In
his position, he has the ultimate responsibility for all phases of the operation of the Minneapolis Fire Department.
17. The defendants in this case, in their respective official capacities, are acting under color of law.
18. The Minneapolis Fire Department at the present time has about 535 members. Those members of the fire department are
classified as fire fighters (the entry level position), fire motor operators (the truck or engine driver), fire captains (the person
in charge of a truck or engine company), district chiefs (the person in charge of one of the five fire districts in the city),
deputy chiefs, the assistant chief, and the chief of the department. There are other specialized positions in the fire department,
such as fire marshall or the director of the fire school, but the aforementioned positions constitute the active fire fighting
force. All promotions in the fire department are from within; it is not possible to begin employment with the fire department
other than at the fire fighter level. (Exhibits 36-39; Hall Deposition, 6, 48; White Deposition, 102.)
*3 19. There are at present no Blacks, Indian-Americans, or Mexican-Americans employed with the Minneapolis Fire
Department. (Exhibits 48-49; Hall Deposition, 41.)
20. The last Black man hired as a fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department was so hired in 1944. He was dismissed
after four months employment, for alleged violations of the uniform requirement. His abrupt dismissal occurred in
circumstances which suggest that he may have been dismissed because of his race. (Hall Deposition, 42; Exhibits 88-91.)
21. One Black man was employed with the fire department up until 1962, when he retired as a district chief. This man was
relatively light complected. Chief Hall said of him: “I personally–he’s a good friend of mine. I call him a Negro. I don’t
know whether he would admit to it, but I can personally say he is a Negro.” (Hall Deposition, 42.)
22. The United States Census Bureau Reports for the year 1970 indicate that Minneapolis had a population in that year of
434,400 persons, of which 19,005 or 4.37% were Black and a total of 27,986 persons or 6.44% were non-white (including
Blacks). (Stipulation, P 65, Table III.)
23. In 1960, the non-white population of Minneapolis was 15,594 or 3.23%. (Stipulation, P 65, Table III.)
24. A minority employee census taken in July of 1970 revealed that 5.29% of all persons employed by the City of
Minneapolis are non-white. (Exhibits 48-49.)
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25. There is now and has been for the past twenty-five years a gross disparity between the percentage of non-white persons in
Minneapolis and the percentage of non-white persons employed with the Minneapolis Fire Department.
26. There is now and was in 1965 a gross disparity between the percentage of non-white persons employed by the City of
Minneapolis as a whole and the percentage of non-white employees in the Minneapolis Fire Department. Since there has
never been more than one minority fireman with the Minneapolis Fire Department in the last 25 years, the very same
disparity revealed by the minority employee censuses taken in 1965 and 1970 would have existed in earlier years. (Exhibits
47-49.)
27. The statistical data referred to in the preceding paragraph is prima facie support for the inference that racial
discrimination has been practiced in the hiring of fire fighters over the last twenty-five years.
28. No evidence has been presented to the Court which rebuts the inference of racial discrimination based upon statistics
alone. On the contrary, the facts stipulated by the parties, the exhibits in evidence, and the testimony in open court establish
that the present all-white fire department is the result of hiring practices and procedures which, whether by design or not,
discriminated against minority applicants as is further described below.
29. Written examinations have been used as a part of all civil service fire fighter examinations. These examinations have been
of considerable difficulty. Over a twenty-year period from 1948 through 1968, a total of 2,404 persons took the written
examinations. Only 1,308 of these persons attained a passing score of 70.0%, or 54.41% of the total. The percentage of
persons passing the examination varied from a low of 40% in 1968 (examination number 7737) to a high of 64.67% in 1952
(examination number 4523). During that period, a total of 22 identifiable minority persons took the fire fighter examinations.
Six of these persons passed, or 27.27%. While the group is not large, and there may have been more minority group
applicants who took the test but cannot now be identified, these scores indicate that minority group applicants did
substantially less well on the examinations given. (Stipulation P 20-21.)
*4 30. It is now generally recognized that minority group persons will often score lower than white persons on an
examination which utilizes a formal English vocabulary. Likewise, an examination which utilizes the street language of
Blacks would discriminate against white applicants. An employment test which is thus “culturally biased” against any group
will tend to eliminate persons of that group without necessarily establishing that they are not likely to succeed in the
employment sought.
31. The four past fire fighter examinations (Exhibits 32-35), given in the years 1957 through 1968, are all representative of
the type of written examination which can have a discriminatory effect against minority persons. These examinations utilized
a formal English vocabulary and assumed a background in fire fighting practices and procedures. It is highly probable that
they were in fact culturally biased against minority applicants, and thus served not only to eliminate minority applicants but
also to deter minority applicants from applying.
32. No effort was ever made prior to the current examination period to analyze the fire fighter examinations to determine
whether they were culturally biased or whether they were valid predictive instruments for use in selecting fire fighters.
(White Deposition, 78.)
33. The four past fire fighter examinations (Exhibits 32-35) were used again and again in substantially the same form.
(Stipulation P 18-19; White Deposition, 75-78.)
34. There was no proven and compelling employment selection purpose served by the use of these four examinations. Indeed,
since fire fighter employment entails an eight-week training course, with on-the-job training, and continuous retraining
there-after, this type of general achievement examination was not an adequate selection device to determine which applicants
could learn the fire fighter duties and responsibilities and perform capably on the job.
35. By the very routine involved in civil service examining, the Civil Service Commission staff was on notice that few of the
past applicants were Black. The continued use of these examinations may not have been done with the conscious intent to
discriminate, but nevertheless, a discriminatory result ensued. (White Deposition, 75-80.)
36. From the years 1950 through 1968 (examination number 7492) the announcement for the fire fighter position (which is
actually the examination plan approved by the Civil Service Commission stating the official qualifications for the job)
contained the statement that the applicant must list all offenses for which he had been arrested. These announcements stated
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that all applications are checked with the Police Department. The following statement also appeared:
Your application will not necessarily be rejected because of any past arrest, except for a felony, but if
there is any falsification of your record in your sworn application, your application will be rejected.
(Exhibits 3-10.)
These same announcements stated that an applicant will be rejected for conviction of a felony and may be rejected for
conviction of any crime. (Exhibits 3-10; Stipulation P 31.)
*5 37. In fact, an applicant was not rejected on the basis of an arrest record, but only on the basis of a conviction record. To
this extent the statement quoted in paragraph 36 was misleading. (White Deposition, 25.)
38. Although the Commission staff apparently has always read “arrest record” to mean “conviction record” the confusion
between the terms “arrest” and “conviction” was evident in the testimony of two of the present Civil Service Commissioners.
39. The announcements for the fire fighter examination in the years 1950 through 1961 stated that an applicant will be
required to report for fingerprinting and will be rejected for refusal to be fingerprinted. (Exhibits 6-10; Stipulation P 32.)
40. The announcements for the fire fighter examinations from 1964 through 1968 (examination number 7492) stated that an
applicant may be required to report for fingerprinting and will be rejected for refusal to be fingerprinted. (Exhibits 3-5;
Stipulation P 33.)
41. For the second examination given in 1968 (number 7737), the announcement contained the following statement:
Arrest record: Must be satisfactory. (No felonies or serious crimes.)

That same announcement contained the same statement quoted in paragraph 36 above, requiring that all arrests be listed.
(Exhibit 2; Stipulation P 34.)
42. The statement with reference to arrests in the past fire fighters announcements, even if it was not really enforced, would
discourage persons with an arrest record from applying for the fire fighter position.
43. In the years from 1945 through 1969, the Annual Reports of the Minneapolis Police Department reveal that arrests made
of non-white persons constitute a percentage of all arrests made which increases from 9.22% in 1945 to 13.37% in 1950 to
20.53% in 1960 to 26.94% in 1969. United States Census Reports indicate that the percentage of non-white persons in
Minneapolis increased from 1.07% in 1940 to 1.62% in 1950 to 3.23% in 1960 to 6.44% in 1970. Comparison of the census
data with the arrest data reveals that there is and has been a substantial and significant disparity between the percentage of
non-white persons in the city and the percentage of non-white persons arrested. (Exhibits 81, 85; Stipulation P 36, 65, Table
III.)
44. Since the percentage of arrests was substantially higher for non-white persons in Minneapolis, the purported arrest record
qualification would have had a decided discriminatory effect in discouraging non-white persons from applying for the fire
fighter position.
45. This discriminatory effect can in no way be justified, for the Commission itself did not claim to use arrest records as a
fire fighter qualification. Furthermore, an arrest record, per se, is not proof of any criminal act and bears no rational relation
to ability adequately to perform as a fire fighter.
46. The announcements (examination plans) for fire fighter from 1950 through 1968 contained a requirement that a
conviction for a felony was an absolute bar to employment as a fire fighter. No distinction was made between types of
felonies. The number of years between the conviction and the date of application was not considered. Furthermore, the
applicant could be disqualified for any convictions, including misdemeanors, although the manner in which this
disqualification was implemented was not spelled out in detail. (Exhibits 2-10; White Deposition, 24-25; Stipulation P 31.)
*6 47. Like arrests, convictions of felonies have also involved a percentage of non-white persons which is substantially in
excess of their percentage in the population.
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48. In 1969, on the basis of referals made to the Hennepin County Department of Court Services, it appears that 12.19% of
the male convicted felons so referred were Black, that 3.56% of such persons were Indians, and that a total of 16.44% of such
persons were non-whites. (Stipulation P 37-38.)
49. The 1970 Census Reports show that 9,345 of the 198,845 males in Minneapolis are Black, or 4.70%. On a county-wide
basis, for the Court Services data would reflect Hennepin County as a whole, the percentage would be even lower. (Exhibit
85; Stipulation P 65, Table IV.)
50. The Reports of the Minnesota Bureau of Criminal Apprehension for the years from 1964 to 1970 indicate that the
percentage of non-whites convicted in all Minnesota district courts has been substantially higher than the percentage of
non-whites in the population as a whole. Since over half of the Blacks in Minnesota live in Minneapolis, it is reasonable to
infer that the disparity revealed by the 1969 Court Services data has existed for previous years as well. While no data has
been submitted to the Court for convictions by race in years prior to 1964, the available Minneapolis Police Department
arrest statistics strongly suggests that the present percentages of non-white convictions would have prevailed in earlier years
as well. (Exhibits 81-85; Stipulation P 37-44, 65, Tables II, V, VI.)
51. The conviction record requirement as stated in these fire fighter examination plans, especially the absolute bar for the
conviction of any felony, would necessarily have the effect of deterring persons with a record of convictions from applying
for the position of fire fighter. Although out-of-state convictions were not ordinarily considered (White Deposition, 18), the
references to fingerprinting and the strong statement regarding the need to state all convictions (Stipulation P 31-34) would
have the effect of deterring anyone who had a felony conviction anywhere from applying. It is evident from the Hennepin
County and Minnesota felony conviction statistics that this conviction record requirement would be a qualification which
would deter more non-whites than whites, on a proportionate basis. The relatively small number of Black applicants in the
years 1948 through 1968 can be explained, at least in part, by the absolute bar imposed on persons convicted by a felony and
by these other strongly stated requirements.
52. No compelling employment purpose was served by the absolute felony bar to employment as a fire fighter, especially
since no distinction was made between types of crimes, no consideration was given to the length of time which elapsed
between the conviction and the application, and no effort was made to determine what convictions reasonably can be said to
constitute a bar to employment as a fire fighter. For the 1970 examination plan, a sliding point scale was adopted which
distinguished between convictions on the basis of length of time between the date of conviction and the date of application.
(Exhibit 67.) That sliding point scale is now in the process of further revision. But there is no evidence which suggests that
there is any rational basis for an absolute felony bar, such as was applied up through 1968, as a qualification for the fire
fighter position.
*7 53. Within the past year, increased efforts have been made to obtain a substantial number of minority applicants for the
fire fighter position. At least twenty-six of the total of 494 applicants were minority persons. In the previous 22 years, there
were only 24 identifiable minority (Black) applicants. To a significant extent, this small number reflects recruitment efforts
which were not directed in any way at obtaining minority applicants. (Stipulation P 8, 29-30.)
54. There are three newspapers in Minneapolis, the Minneapolis Spokesman, the Twin City Observer, and the Twin City
Courier, which reach a large portion of the minority community. Until 1965, there was no advertising of the availability of
fire fighter positions in these newspapers. These papers were used in the 1970 recruitment program (Exhibit 62) but prior to
that time there was little use made of them. One fire fighter advertisement appeared in the Spokesman on August 3, 1967
(Exhibit 97), but this was after applications closed for the fire fighter positions then open on July 31, 1967 (Exhibit 4). There
was testimony to the effect that the Observer and the Courier were used between 1965 and 1970, (White Deposition, 72-74)
but the defendants, who have records of such advertising, did not present any evidence regarding when these advertisements
appeared. The Civil Service Commission did advertise other positions in the Spokesman during that time, including
patrolman and civil rights department director. (Exhibits 97, 101.) The 1970 minority employee census for Minneapolis
indicates that minority employment efforts in the Police Department were more successful. (Exhibits 48-49.)
55. Prior to 1965, recruiting of fire fighters involved advertising in the two major daily newspapers in Minneapolis,
advertising in the official legal newspaper, Finance and Commerce, and posting of announcements in the City Hall and the
fire stations. No affirmative recruitment efforts comparable to those made in 1970 were made in any previous recruitment
period. (White Deposition, 72-75.)
56. In a report to the Mayor of Minneapolis issued in 1965, the Mayor’s Commission on Human Relations found that a
passive recruitment system was probably a major factor accounting for the low percentage of non-white employment in the
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City as a whole. (Exhibit 47.) The evidence presented to the Court substantiates this finding with respect to the fire
department. White fire department personnel and white city employees who knew of fire fighter openings can reasonably be
expected to spread the word of such openings to other white persons. And despite a history of only one minority fire fighter
over a period from 1945 to 1962, and none since then, there was no aggressive minority recruitment program for fire fighters
until 1970.
57. During the period when fire fighters were being recruited in 1970, there were efforts made by the Civil Service
Commission to make direct contact with prospective minority applicants. (Exhibit 58.) Those efforts were made in
cooperation with the MOER Fireman Employment Subcommittee, a group which was formed under the auspices of
Mobilization of Economic Resources (MOER), the local OEO antipoverty agency. Prior to 1970 efforts were made to inform
community agencies of the availability of fire fighter positions by mailing announcements to them, but no effort at positive
recruitment, such as was done in 1970, was made in earlier years. (White Deposition, 73-75.)
*8 58. Another factor in the creation of an all-white fire department in Minneapolis was the bad reputation which that
department had in the minority community of Minneapolis for fair hiring practices with respect to minority persons.
Testimony given at the hearing by Black residents of Minneapolis, including longtime residents and more recent arrivals,
including younger men recently active in the work of the MOER Subcommittee as well as older men who had been active in
the minority community for many years, established that the minority community has viewed the Minneapolis Fire
Department as an agency of the city in which they were not welcome. This view of the fire department in the minority
community was corroborated by the testimony of the former executive director (a white man) of the former Minneapolis Fair
Employment Practice Commission and by the defendant White. This bad reputation of the fire department may be traced in
part to incidences of possible overt discrimination as in the cases of Payne Calhoun (Exhibits 88-91) and Matt Little (Exhibits
76-77). But the breadth of this bad reputation results, as much as anything, from the fact that minority persons had not seen
their fellows on fire trucks over the past twenty-five years.
59. There are no oral examinations now used in conjunction with the fire fighter examinations. (Exhibit 1.) They have not
been used since 1955. (Stipulation P 27.) Oral examinations were given in 1950, 1952, and 1955. (Stipulation P 22, Exhibits
9-10.) At least three examiners were involved in each oral examination, with the final grade on the oral examination being an
average of the three scores. (Exhibits 18-29, 77; Stipulation P 25.)
60. During the three years oral examinations were used, a total of 326 persons took the examination. Three Black men took
the oral examinations; one in 1950 and two in 1952. The only person to fail on an oral examination was Matt Little, a Black
man who took the oral examination in 1950. He was the only applicant out of 115 to fail that examination in 1950. (Exhibits
18-20, 76, 77; Stipulation P 23-26.)
61. Mr. Little received grades of 65%, 70% and 70% from the three examiners. He was assigned an average grade of 68.33%
by the Civil Service Commission. His grade of 68.33% was significantly lower than any other oral examination grade given
in 1950, or in the years 1952 and 1955. (Exhibits 20, 76, 77; Stipulation P 25-26.)
62. The statistical evidence alone supports an inference that racial discrimination was involved in Mr. Little’s failure on the
oral examination in 1950.
63. In the course of an investigation of a charge of racial discrimination with respect to Mr. Little’s grade by the former
Minneapolis Fair Employment Practice Commission, the examiner who scored Mr. Little 65% made comments to the effect
that he didn’t think it would be good for only one Black man to join the department, that he thought Mr. Little’s service in the
medical corps during the war meant that he was carrying slop buckets, and that he was surprised that Mr. Little was not a
flashy dresser. Despite his denials of any attempt to discriminate against Mr. Little, the evidence points directly to the fact
that Mr. Little failed the oral examination because of his race. (Exhibits 76-77.)
*9 64. The Fair Employment Practice Commission, in its attempt to reach a settlement in the case of Mr. Little, failed to
obtain an agreement with the Civil Service Commission that the decision of the oral examiners should be overruled. The Fair
Employment Practice Commission minutes of December 4, 1950 state that “the Civil Service Commission had agreed to
change its examination procedure for the future so that a grade of 70 will no longer be required in oral examinations.”
(Exhibit 76.)
65. The examination plan for the fire fighters examinations given in 1950, the time when Mr. Little took the examination,
states that the written examination will be given a weight of eight, the oral examination will be given a weight of two, and
that a “minimum of 70 per cent is required in all parts of the examination to qualify.” (Exhibit 10.) There is no existent copy
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of the examination plan for 1952 (Stipulation, page 2), but the examination plans for 1955 and 1957 contain identical
statements. (Exhibits 8-9.) No change was made until 1957, when, as the minutes of the Civil Service Commission state, the
examination plan was amended because “a study has been made of the last three examinations and it was found that no one
had been disqualified by the oral examination.” (Stipulation, P 27.) The last three examinations referred to would include the
1950 examination, which Mr. Little failed.
66. The continued use of oral examinations after the Matt Little incident reflects an indifference by the Civil Service
Commission to the use of examination procedures which had proven susceptible to racial discrimination.
67. From 1950 through 1964 the Civil Service Commission required that all persons who applied for the fire fighter position
must be high school graduates, except that veterans could qualify with a G. E. D. certificate or its equivalent. In 1967 and
1968, a high school education was still required, but all persons, not only veterans, were permitted to qualify with a G. E. D.
or its equivalent. Throughout this entire time, the education requirement had to be satisfied as of the time the application was
submitted. (Exhibits 2-10.)
68. Prior to 1963, there is no data available regarding the relative numbers of minority students in Minneapolis who
completed a high school education. From 1963 on, the Minneapolis Public Schools have conducted “sight counts” of students
present in school on a given day each year either in November or December. These studies show that the percentage of Black,
Indian-American and Spanish-surnamed-American students at the elementary level is consistently higher than the percentage
of such students in junior high school. Further-more, the percentage of such students in junior high school is consistently
higher than the percentage of students in senior high school. (Exhibits 78-80.)
69. In 1963, Black students constituted 6.3% of all elementary school pupils, but only 3.0% of all senior high school students
were Black. In that same year, 1.5% of the senior high school students were Indian-American. In each year since 1963, the
percentage of Black and Indian-American pupils in senior high school has been substantially less than the percentage of such
students in the elementary grades. In 1969, there were about one-third less Black pupils in grade twelve in senior high school
(6.48%) than there were in the city’s elementary schools. These figures demonstrate persuasively that a requirement of a high
school diploma is going to disqualify a higher proportion of Blacks than Whites. (Exhibits 78-80.)
*10 70. Although there is no public school data for the years prior to 1963, the census data for 1960 indicates that a
substantially smaller percentage of non-white persons in Minneapolis have completed four years of high school education.
On the basis of that census data and on the basis of the continuing trend evidenced by the school data, it is reasonable to infer
that the high school education requirement for 1968 and the years prior to that would have had a substantial discriminatory
effect against non-white applicants. Since the qualification is stated in the announcement, the effect would have been
evidenced in substantially smaller numbers of non-white applicants. (Exhibit 85; Stipulation P 65, Table VIII.)
71. There is no indication that the high school education requirement was an essential and necessary qualification for the
position of fire fighter. The evidence shows that no substantive knowledge of fire fighting practices or procedures is essential
for the fire fighter applicant. The evidence also indicates that the essential prerequisite for a fire fighter is the ability to learn
these fire fighting practices and procedures. There is no evidence which establishes that a high school education is in any
respect a necessary indication that the applicant has such ability to learn. An educational requirement for promotions within
the department may have some justification, but at the entry level position of fire fighter there is no necessary basis for that
position. (White Deposition, 51; Hall Deposition, 58-59; Exhibit 45.)
72. The Civil Service Commission gives an absolute preference in certification in all positions, including fire fighter, to
qualified veterans. Under state law, a veteran, unless he enlisted from the State of Minnesota, must have lived in the state and
locality to which application is made for a period of five years (excluding military service time) in order to qualify. (Exhibit
56; M. S. A. § 197.45.)
73. The importance of having a veterans preference is exemplified by the fact that of the persons who were employed as fire
fighters with the Minneapolis Fire Department as of July 10, 1970, who were hired as a result of examinations conducted
from 1957 through 1968, a total of 139 had claimed the veterans preference. In percentage terms, approximately 60% of these
fire fighters had claimed the veterans preference. State law also requires that a 5 point preference be given to similarly
qualified veterans on promotional examinations. (M. S. A. § 197.45; Stipulation P 46-64.)
74. The importance of claiming a veterans preference is reflected in the fact that veterans are hired first, with nonveterans,
even though they have higher scores, waiting for a year or more to be hired after the first veterans are hired. Thus, as a result
of the fire fighter examination given in 1961, a group of ten veterans was hired first (Stipulation P 55), approximately one
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year later another group of five veterans was hired (Stipulation P 56), approximately three months later another group of
eight veterans was hired (Stipulation P 57), and seven months after that a group of one veteran and ten nonveterans was hired
(Stipulation P 58).
*11 75. While the durational residency requirement may appear neutral on its face, the five year period of residency serves to
eliminate a disproportionate number of minority applicants. The census data for 1960 reflects the commonly known fact that
there has been an influx into northern central cities of minority persons. The 1960 Census Report reflects this movement in
statistics which show the length of time in which housing units have been occupied by white households and non-white
households respectively. These figures show that more white households on a proportionate basis, have occupied the specific
housing units in which they reside in 1960 than non-white households have. Thus, 44.08% of white households lived in the
same dwelling in 1960 as in 1954; only 21.41% of the non-white households lived in the same dwelling in 1960 in which
they lived in 1954. These figures reflect substantially greater mobility on the part of non-white households. It follows that
non-white persons would have been disqualified for a veterans preference to a far greater extent than white persons. (Exhibit
85; Stipulation P 65, Table IX.)
76. The data with respect to current applicants reflects a similar disproportionate effect of the durational residency
requirement for minority applicants. Approximately 13 applicants who are residents of Minneapolis would be unable to claim
a veterans preference because they do not satisfy the five year requirement. Five of these are minority applicants. (Stipulation
P 11; Group I-B.)
77. The disproportionate effect of the durational residency requirement on minority persons was another factor which
effectively would have deterred them from applying for the fire fighter position.

Findings With Respect to the Most Recent Examination Plan and Recruitment Period
78. Some changes have been made in the hiring practices and procedures of the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission with
respect to all classifications of employees since 1965.
79. With respect to recruitment for fire fighters, an effort was made to advertise the availability of fire fighter employment in
the local newspapers which reach the minority community. As has already been stated, an advertisement was placed in the
Minneapolis Spokesman in 1967, although it appeared too late to be of any use. Advertisements were also placed in the
Observer, although there is no indication in the record of how extensive this advertising was before 1970.
80. In 1969, a Black Urban Corps intern working with the Civil Service Commission staff submitted a report to the
Commission regarding the effect of civil service selection procedures on minority groups. This report was highly critical of
civil service requirements which were higher than necessary for the job offered and which incorporated examinations which
were slanted toward a white middle class vocabulary. The report also recommended that the Commission adopt a statement
incorporating specific procedures which would be adopted to assure equal employment opportunity. (Exhibit 50.)
*12 81. As a result of this report, the Civil Service Commission, in November, 1969, adopted a Policy Statement on
Employment which incorporates many of the suggested changes. According to that Policy Statement, the Commission is now
attempting to assure that job qualifications stated in its examination plan are relevant to the actual requirements of the job and
that examinations are analyzed to remove elements of cultural bias which screen out otherwise capable minority applicants.
(Exhibits 51-52; White Deposition, 68-69.)
82. Significant changes in fire fighter recruitment were implemented by the Civil Service Commission staff in cooperation
with the MOER Firemen Employment Subcommittee. This Subcommittee was established under the auspices of MOER. In
addition to members of the MOER staff, the defendant White and Miss Barbara Hanson of the Civil Service Commission
staff were active members of this staff. Several firefighters were also active members of the Subcommittee, including Gordon
Norheim, the president of the Fire Fighters Association, the local fire fighters union. These fire fighters volunteered their own
time to aid the Subcommittee in its efforts to obtain minority fire fighters. Representatives of other community agencies
which are active in furthering minority employment were also members of the Subcommittee. During the late winter and
spring of 1970, the Subcommittee attempted to effect changes in Civil Service practices regarding the hiring of fire fighters,
with special emphasis on the examinations used, the requirements for the job, and recruitment procedures.
8
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83. On April 23, 1970, the Civil Service Commission approved the examination plan for fire fighter. This plan changed some
of the requirements for fire fighter which had been incorporated in earlier fire fighter examination plans. Over the protest of
the defendant Hall, the height requirement was lowered from 5’8″ to 5’6″. The eyesight requirement was liberalized. The
entry level age was lowered from 21 to 20. An applicant was permitted to obtain a G. E. D. certificate before being hired; he
no longer had to have such a certificate at the time he applied. And the absolute felony conviction bar was eliminated.
(Exhibits 1, 2, 69 – minutes of CSC, 4-23-70.)
84. On May 12, 1970, Fred Herndon, who was then Chairman of the MOER Subcommittee, sent a letter to the defendant
Proctor, which outlined the Subcommittee’s recommendations regarding fire fighter employment requirements. The
Subcommittee suggested changing the minimum age requirement to 18 years, dropping the high school or G. E. D. equivalent
requirement except for promotional purposes, dropping the height requirement, eliminating the arrest-conviction requirement
as stated, and permitting an applicant to obtain a valid driver’s license by the end of six months employment. The
Subcommittee also recommended changes in the written examination. (Exhibit 69–letter of May 12, 1970.)
85. On May 14, 1970, in response to the Subcommittee’s proposals, the Civil Service Commission scheduled a special
meeting to study these recommendations. (Exhibit 69–CSC minutes of 5-14-70.)
*13 86. On the following day, May 15, 1970, the defendant Hall distributed to all fire department personnel a memorandum
which characterized the Subcommittee’s proposals as an effort to lower standards. In this memorandum he made specific
reference to Civil Service Commission minutes which related that Gordon Norheim, the Fire Fighters Association president
who had served on the MOER Subcommittee, had stated that he did not think that height was a relevant factor in fire fighting.
(Exhibit 69–memorandum dated May 15, 1970.)
87. Participation by fire department personnel in the activities of the MOER Subcommittee lessened after this memorandum
was issued.
88. On May 27, 1970, the defendant Hall wrote to the defendant Proctor with recommendations for the fire fighter
examination plan, which included keeping the age requirement at 20 years, maintaining the 5’8″ height requirement,
requiring minimum college credits, and requiring a Minnesota chauffeur’s license. (Exhibit 69–memorandum dated May 27,
1970.)
89. On May 28, 1970, the Civil Service Commission considered the defendant Hall’s letter of May 27, 1970, and the
memorandum he issued to all fire fighter personnel on May 15, 1970. The defendant Glover directed that he be placed on
record reprimanding the defendant Hall for issuing a memorandum “which through misstatement of fact, distortion, and
innuendo sets the climate for discouraging qualified minority persons from applying for the forthcoming fire fighter
examination.” The Commission unanimously agreed to refer the matter to the City Council for investigation and action. The
Commission also scheduled a public hearing on the requirements for the fire fighter position. (Exhibit 69–CSC minutes,
5-28-70.)
90. The Commission recommendation that the City Council investigate and take action with respect to the defendant Hall’s
memorandum (Exhibit 69–letter of June 5, 1970) has not been followed up by the Commission.
91. After a public hearing held on June 8, 1970, the Civil Service Commission voted, with the defendant Glover dissenting,
rejected a proposal submitted by the Urban Coalition of Minneapolis and supported by the MOER Subcommittee that a
specified number of fire fighter positions be set aside for minority applicants. The specific proposal considered by the
Commission was the defendant Glover’s motion that “24 Fire Fighter positions be set aside for qualified eligibles, 10 to be
appointed from the up-coming eligible list, and 14 over the next two years.” (Exhibit 69–letter dated July 13, 1970, CSC
minutes for 8-13-70, CSC minutes for 8-20-70, CSC minutes for 9-10-70.)
93. During the time from May, 1970 through September, 1970, when these efforts were being made by the MOER
Subcommittee and other groups to effect changes in the fire fighter qualifications and to seek Commission approval of the
proposal setting aside fire fighter positions for qualified minority applicants, increased efforts were being made to recruit
minority applicants for fire fighters and changes were made in the written portion of the fire fighter examination.
*14 94. The Civil Service Commission staff relied heavily upon suggestions by the MOER Subcommittee in implementing
its recruitment program. The Commission staff advertised the position in the Spokesman, Observer, and Courier, as well as in
other media. Fire fighter applications were sent by the Commission staff to various community agencies and to a large
number of prospective minority applicants whose names were submitted by these agencies. The Commission staff initiated
9

Carter v. Gallagher, Not Reported in F.Supp. (1971)

CORC–Civil Service Opportunity Recruiting Clinic–a mobile employment recruitment van which went to community centers
throughout the city during the time fire fighter applications were received. The Commission staff also notified prospective
applicants of the availability of pre-test tutoring sessions which were held throughout the city at community centers and
which were conducted by members of the Commission staff and fire fighters who volunteered their time. (Exhibits 58-64;
White Deposition 57-60, 74-75, 100.)
95. The MOER Subcommittee personnel who contacted prospective minority applicants were met in the great majority of
cases with the reaction that there was no chance for a minority person to become a fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire
Department.
96. As a result of these recruitment efforts, a total of at least 26 Blacks, Indian-Americans and Mexican-Americans applied
for the fire fighter position out of a total of 494 applicants. (Stipulation P 4, 8.)
97. The civil service application form does not require an applicant to state his race. A supplementary card can be filled out
which does state race. (Exhibit 75.) Since all applicants did not fill out this supplementary form, the list of minority
applicants in the stipulation may be incomplete. However, a comparison of the names of current applicants contained in the
Stipulation, P 5-14, with the names of persons supplied by the various community agencies contained in the lists which make
up Exhibit 60, indicates that only one name on those lists, that of Kenneth Zubrod, does not appear among the names listed in
paragraph eight of the Stipulation. Whether Mr. Zubrod is a minority applicant is not clear from the evidence. In any case,
since the major thrust of the minority recruitment program was through these agencies, the number of additional minority
applicants is not likely to be high.
98. The existence of an all-white fire department, the failure of the defendant Hall to assist in minority recruitment, and the
positions taken by the defendant Hall in his memorandum of May 15, 1970 and his letter of May 27, 1970 were a serious
impediment to effective minority recruitment for fire fighters in the summer of 1970.
99. The defendant Hall’s letter to the defendant Proctor dated May 27, 1970 and incorporated in Exhibit 69, especially insofar
as it requests minimum college credits and a chauffeur’s license as entry level requirements was, in the context of the MOER
Subcommittee’s efforts, a rebuff to efforts to implement an effective minority recruitment program.
*15 100. The defendant Hall had no basis for suggesting that a chauffeur’s license be required for the fire fighter applicant.
While the fire department does legitimately require engine and truck drivers to have a chauffeur’s license, the fire department
operations manual prohibits a probationary fire fighter (his first six months) from driving this equipment. Furthermore, only
fire motor operators (drivers), regularly assigned Chief’s Aides, and fire fighters on the fire motor operator eligibility list are
required to have chauffeur’s licenses. (Exhibits 45, 72-74.)
101. The current examination for fire fighters includes a written examination and an agility (physical training) test. Eighty per
cent of the score is based on the written examination and twenty per cent of the score is based on the agility test. An applicant
must attain a qualifying score of seventy per cent in both examinations. (Exhibit 1.)
102. As a result of the discussions with the MOER Subcommittee in the furtherance of the Civil Service Commission’s
employment policy (Exhibits 51-52), the Civil Service Commission staff rejected the previous written fire fighter
examinations (Exhibits 32-35) and developed a new written examination which required the applicant to answer fifteen to
twenty multiplechoice questions based upon each of the three films to be shown at the examination. The examination also
included a standard form mechanical comprehension test. (Exhibit 23A; White Deposition 38-42.)
103. On August 20, 1970, the City of Minneapolis entered into a contract with Personnel Decisions, Inc., a consultant firm
providing professional services to businesses and governmental bodies in vocational testing and related fields. This contract
required the consultants to engage in certain test validation studies and to compile a manual for use by the Civil Service
Commission staff in test validation. (Exhibit 55.)
104. In conjunction with Personnel Decisions, Inc., the Civil Service Commission staff planned validation studies of the
proposed written examination. (White Deposition, 41-57.)
105. Until this Court enjoined the administration of the fire fighter examination on November 5, 1970, that examination had
been scheduled to be given on November 16, 1970. At that time, these validation studies had not been completed.
106. At the time her deposition was taken on February 11, 1971, the defendant White testified that the written examination
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was ready to be given, subject to studying the test and investigating its validity. At the hearing she indicated that a new
examination would be devised or purchased because the scores on the proposed examination tended to bunch in such a
manner as to make it an inadequate selection device.
107. The defendant White and the defendant Gallagher both testified that no fire fighter examination would be given until
studies had been completed which establish that the examinations are not biased against minority applicants and do predict
job performance as a fire fighter.
*16 108. The present examination plan states that an applicant for the fire fighter position must have a satisfactory arrest
record. Promotional literature also refers to a satisfactory arrest record. (Exhibit 1; White Deposition, 14-16.)
109. According to the testimony of the defendant White, the Civil Service Commission staff did not and does not actually
consider a fire fighter applicant’s arrest record when determining his qualifications. (White Deposition, 14-16.)
110. The testimony of the defendants Glover, Gallagher, and Hall reflected considerable confusion on their part whether the
Commission staff did in fact consider arrest records. Their confusion must be shared with prospective fire fighter applicants.
111. Considering the arrest data contained in Stipulation P 36 and Exhibit 81, it is apparent that any use of arrest records as
an employment qualification is going to weigh most heavily against minority applicants.
112. An arrest record in itself is not of sufficient probative value to use it in selecting fire fighters, especially when that
requirement as stated in Exhibit 1 would have the effect of deterring a proportionately larger number of minority applicants
from applying for the position.
113. The present Civil Service Commission practice is to consider only a conviction record in determining an applicant’s
qualification for the fire fighter position. A point system was adopted by the Commission to differentiate between convictions
for misdemeanors and felonies and, with respect to felonies, to differentiate between recent and earlier convictions. (Exhibit
67.) The Commission has rejected the earlier position that any conviction of a felony is an absolute bar to employment as a
fire fighter. But the Commission is also considering making changes in the present system set forth in Exhibit 67. The
procedure intended to be followed with respect to the present group of fire fighter applicants is not now established.
114. The conviction record contained in Stipulation P 37-44 and Exhibits 82-84 when compared with the census data
contained in Stipulation P 65 and Exhibits 85 establishes that any conviction record requirement for fire fighter applicants
will affect a proportionately larger number of minority applicants.
115. The defendant Commissioners will reconsider an applicant’s disqualification on the basis of a conviction record if he
requests reconsideration at the staff level and is not satisfied with the disposition made. However, there is no notice of the
possibility of staff or Commission reconsideration contained in the Civil Service Commission rejection notice. The form used
for that purpose also refers to “arrest record” rather than “conviction record” as the basis for the finding. (Exhibit 87.)
116. The testimony of two of the defendant Commissioners indicates that no serious consideration has been given to
establishing standards whereby the relation of the conviction of any particular felony or misdemeanor to adequate
performance as a fire fighter can be judged. One of the testifying Commissioners was unaware of what distinction there was
between a felony and a misdemeanor.
*17 117. No compelling employment interest on the part of the Civil Service Commission has been established which
supports disqualification of an applicant for fire fighter on the basis of a felony conviction which occurred more than five
years prior to his application.
118. No compelling employment interest on the part of the Civil Service Commission has been established which supports
disqualification of an applicant for fire fighter on the basis of a misdemeanor conviction which occurred more than two years
prior to his application.
119. No compelling employment interest on the part of the Civil Service Commission has been established which supports
disqualification of an applicant on the basis of felony or misdemeanor convictions without regard to the applicant’s
subsequent record, without regard to the type of criminal act involved, without regard to the circumstances in which the
criminal act occurred, and without regard to the effect which that type of criminal behavior would have on the applicant’s
performance of fire fighter duty.
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120. The present fire fighter examination plan (Exhibit 1) states the following educational requirement:
High school diploma or G. E. D. certificate (If you are in the process of obtaining a G. E. D. certificate,
your application may be accepted; however, you must have your G. E. D. completed before you are
hired.)

121. Minneapolis Public School data indicates that there is a significantly higher drop-out rate for minority students than for
white students. It follows that a disproportionate number of minority persons do not receive a high school diploma. (Exhibits
78-80.)
122. The stated educational requirements have the effect of discriminating against minority applicants on the grounds of their
race.
123. No substantive job knowledge is required of the fire fighter recruit when he comes to the fire fighter training school
(drill school). He is not expected to know at that time the names and uses of the various fire fighting implements, apparatus,
and equipment. He is not expected to know the procedures which are utilized by the Minneapolis Fire Department. He is not
expected to know principles upon which fire fighting techniques are based. (Hall Deposition, 13-37, 58-59.)
124. The Minneapolis Fire Department seeks applicants who have the ability and the willingness to practice and to learn the
procedures of fire fighting followed by the Minneapolis Fire Department. The requisite ability to learn does not imply the
ability to have immediate and long-lasting retention of principles or procedures which are demonstrated on one occasion or
on a few occasions, for the Minneapolis Fire Department engages in continuing retraining of all personnel on all aspects of
fire fighting procedure and theory. (White Deposition, 51; Hall Deposition 14-15, 25, 34-35, 58-59; Exhibit 45.)
125. Attaining a high school diploma or a G. E. D. certificate may evidence the learning ability necessary for fire fiighter
training, but such education cannot be considered a necessary indication of such ability.
*18 126. The currently scheduled written examination, when it is validated in accordance with the defendants’ plans, should
determine whether the applicant has the ability to learn necessary for fire fighter training and for adequate performance of fire
fighter duties. (White Deposition, 51.)
127. Formal education at the high school level or beyond may be necessary for higher ranking positions in the fire
department (Exhibits 86, 96), but there is no evidence to suggest that high school education or its equivalent is essential for
the entry level position of fire fighter.
128. Mere surmises by the defendants that education is beneficial or that the better educated man will be better on the job, in
the absence of an established relationship between formal education and success on the job, cannot justify the use of
employment qualifications which will have a discriminatory impact on minority groups.
129. The present examination plan states that an applicant must be at least 20 years old but not yet 30 years old, except for
veterans, who may apply up to age 35. (Exhibit 1.)
130. The fire fighter hiring practices described above have discriminated against minority persons who are now aged 30
through 34 and no longer eligible for fire fighter employment unless they are veterans.
131. The defendant Hall stated that he would not favor lowering the minimum age to 18 years, but “would not put up very
much opposition to it either.” He suggested that a mature and stable individual would be required. He also indicated that he
had had no experience with fire fighters aged 18 and 19. (Hall Deposition, 49-50.)
132. The defendant Commissioners established the entry level age requirement of 20 years without reference to any
established relationship between that age and the requirements and responsibilities of the position of fire fighter with the
Minneapolis Fire Department.
133. The Court can take judicial notice of the fact that 18 and 19 year old men are members of the military service and are
required to act responsibly under battle-field conditions which involve stress and tension equal to if not greater than the stress
and tension involved in fire fighting.
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134. The unemployment rate of minority males aged 18 and 19 is significantly higher than the unemployment rate of white
males in that same age bracket. (Exhibit 95.)
135. The chances of success of an affirmative recruitment program would be significantly increased if recruitment efforts
could be directed at 18 and 19 year old minority persons.
136. If the requested minority preference is not imposed by the Court, the following procedure will be followed by the
defendants in certifying fire fighter applicants:
a. An eligibility list will be established ranking those applicants who pass the examination in order of their average score on
both the written and agility examinations.
b. Applicants must pass the medical examination.
c. First preference will be given to applicants who satisfy the one-year residency requirements in Minneapolis and who can
claim a veterans preference under Minnesota law. These persons would be certified in order of their relative standing on the
eligibility list.
*19 d. Second preference would be given to applicants who satisfy a one year Minneapolis residency requirement and who
do not claim a veterans preference. These persons would be certified in order of their relative standing on the eligibility list.
e. Third preference will be given to applicants who do not satisfy the one year Minneapolis residency requirement but who do
qualify as veterans. These persons would be satisfied in order of their relative standing on the eligibility list.
f. Fourth preference will be given to applicants who do not satisfy the one-year Minneapolis residency requirement and who
do not qualify as veterans. These persons would be certified in order of their relative standing on the eligibility list. (Exhibits
56-57.)
137. On the basis of the information contained in the applications completed by fire fighter applicants, it is possible to state in
approximate terms the number of fire fighter applicants in each of the aforementioned preference groups, although there may
be as much as a ten per cent error involving either underinclusion or overinclusion of applicants in each group. (White
Deposition, 96-99.)
138. The names of the current applicants and their probable classification within the aforementioned preference group are set
forth in the Stipulation P 11-14. Considering the number of minority applicants in those groups, and the testimony of
Elisabeth White at trial, if the requested minority preference is not granted, the chances are that one or maybe two minority
applicants may be certified as fire fighters to fill the 40 positions presently available.
139. The practical result of the failure or refusal of the Court to grant a minority preference would be, in all probability, to
limit the number of successful minority applicants, even if additional fire fighters are certified, to a very small number.
140. Even if adequate steps are taken to revise the fire fighter qualifications to remove existing requirements which create
barriers to employment that affect a disproportionate number of minority persons, the addition of such a small number of
minority persons to the Minneapolis Fire Department will not overcome the continuing effects of past discrimination and will
not dispell the continued effects of that Department’s bad reputation for fair employment practices with respect to minority
persons. What is needed now to correct the effects of the past twenty-five years is the immediate certification of at least
twenty minority fire fighters.
141. Of the current applicants for fire fighter positions wih the Minneapolis Fire Department, approximately 13 persons are
veterans and residents of Minneapolis who cannot claim a veterans preference because they have not been residents of the
State and the City for the requisite five year period. Approximately 20 applicants who are not residents of Minneapolis
cannot claim a veterans preference because of failure to satisfy the durational residency requirement. (Stipulation P 11, Group
I-B, P 13, Group III-C.)
*20 142. The durational residency requirement in the Veterans Preference Act imposes a penalty on otherwise qualified
veterans, who do not meet the five year requirement, for engaging in their constitutionally protected right to travel.
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143. There is no evidence to suggest that there is a compelling state interest which is served by the durational residency
requirement incorporated in the veterans preference act.
144. The defendants will not incur any significant administrative problems if the durational residency requirements are
temporarily enjoined pending the hearing and determination of a three-judge court. There would be no need for the cessation
of any certification of applicants.
145. Applicants for positions in the classified service of the City of Minneapolis who are qualified veterans except for the
fact that they do not satisfy the durational residency requirement will suffer irreparable harm if the requested temporary
restraining order is not issued enjoining the enforcement of that statute pending the hearing and determination of that issue by
a three-judge court in that they will lose a preferred position on the eligibility list and will be denied the opportunity of
employment and consequent loss of seniority rights which protect them in the case of lay-offs and which govern their
opportunities for further promotion. In the case of the present fire fighter applicants, there are approximately 113 applicants
who would be offered certification ahead of the thirteen veterans who could be in that group, but for the enforcement of the
durational residency requirement. With a limited number of positions available, these thirteen veterans are unlikely to have
any chance whatsoever for fire fighter employment.
146. The members of the class of veterans who are disqualified by the durational residency requirement of the Veterans
Preference Act which was established by the order of the Court dated November 5, 1970, are adequately represented in the
present action.

Conclusions of Law
1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action and these defendants under 28 U. S. C. § 1343(3) and (4).
2. The plaintiffs have established that the practices and procedures used by the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission over
the past twenty-five years in hiring fire fighters involved a pattern and practice of discrimination by race in violation of 42 U.
S. C. §§ 1981 and 1983 and the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.
3. The plaintiffs have established that the practices and procedures used by the defendants in the past two years in hiring fire
fighters did not comport with the effective affirmative action to dispel the present and continuing effects of past
discrimination which the defendants are required to implement pursuant to 42 U. S. C. §§ 1981 and 1983 and the Equal
Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.
4. In the present action, this Court has the obligation to issue a decree which insofar as possible will eliminate the continuing
effects of past discrimination in hiring of fire fighters for the Minneapolis Fire Department.
*21 5. This Court has the power and the obligation under 42 U. S. C. § 1981 to impose a limited minority preference in hiring
fire fighters for the Minneapolis Fire Department to assure that substantial elimination of the present effects of past
discrimination is effected now.
6. The imposition of a minority preference and the necessary limited injunction against the application of M. S. A. § 197.45
and the application of provisions of the Minneapolis City Charter requiring certification of eligible employees on the basis of
their relative standing on competitive examinations under 42 U. S. C. § 1981 is not such injunctive relief as requires a
three-judge court pursuant to 28 U. S. C. § 2281.
7. Implementation of the presently stated arrest (conviction) record and education requirements in the Minneapolis Civil
Service Commission fire fighter examination plan number 8326 (Exhibit 1) violates 42 U. S. C. §§ 1981 and 1983, and the
Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution in that such
implementation creates classifications which have the effect of discriminating against minority fire fighter applicants on the
ground of their race, without any compelling state interest therefor and such standards are not reasonably related to the
requirements for performance in the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department.
8. Implementation of the presently stated entry level age of 20 in the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission fire fighter
examination plan number 8326 violates 42 U. S. C. §§ 1981 and 1983 and the Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of
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the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution in that such requirement inhibits an effective affirmative
recruitment program to secure minority applicants for the position of fire fighter and is not reasonably related to the
requirements of such position.
9. Implementation of the requirement of Minneapolis Civil Service Commission fire fighter examination plan number 8236
which states that a non-veteran applicant must not have reached the age of thirty years violates 42 U. S. C. §§ 1981 and 1983
and the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution in that it denies the
opportunity for minority persons aged thirty through thirty-four years who have been subject to a pattern and practice of
discrimination to apply for the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department without any compelling state
interest justifying such denial.
10. This Court must maintain continuing jurisdiction of this action to assure the implementation of the relief granted.
11. The plaintiffs’ request for an injunction against the enforcement of the five-year state and local residency requirement
incorporated in the definition of “veteran” in M. S. A. § 197.45, Subdivision (1) presents a substantial constitutional question
which requires the convening of a three-judge district court pursuant to 28 U. S. C. §§ 2281 and 2284.
*22 12. Pending the hearing and determination of the application for said injunction, a temporary restraining order enjoining
the enforcement of these durational residency requirements must issue pursuant to 28 U. S. C. § 2284(3).

Decree
The plaintiffs have moved this Court for various injunctive orders requiring the defendants to implement certain hiring
practices and procedures with respect to the position of fire fighter within the Minneapolis Fire Department. The plaintiffs
have also moved the Court to request the convening of a three judge court to hear and determine the constitutionality of the
five year State and local residency requirement incorporated in the Minnesota Veterans Preference Act and to enjoin the
enforcement of the requirement of said Act pending the hearing and determination of the three judge court.
On the basis of the records and proceedings herein, the evidence presented to the Court, the arguments of counsel, and the
findings of fact and conclusions of law filed in this case this date, it is the Order, Judgment and Decree of this Court:
1. That the defendants herein, their successors in office, agents, servants, and employees, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them, give absolute preference in certification as fire fighters with the Minneapolis Fire Department to
twenty (20) Black, American Indian, or Spanish-surnamed-American applicants for fire fighter who qualify for such
positions on the basis of the examinations given pursuant to the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission fire fighter
examination plan number 8326, or subsequent examination plans, and who meet the requirements of said examination plans
as amended pursuant to paragraph seven (7) of this Decree.
2. That the defendants herein, their successors in office, agents, servants, and employees, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them,
(a) establish an eligibility list of all Black, American Indian or Spanish-surnamed-American applicants for the position of fire
fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department who qualify for such positions on the basis of the examinations given pursuant
to the Minneapolis Civil Service Commission fire fighter examination plan number 8326 and who meet the requirements of
said examination plan as amended pursuant to paragraph seven (7) of this Decree, and
(b) rank said minority applicants in order of their relative standing on said examinations with those persons eligible for a
veterans preference or for a residence preference given such preference on said eligibility list, and
(c) proceed with the certification of fire fighter applicants from the full eligibility list established on the basis of said
examinations only after twenty positions have been filled from the eligibility list established pursuant to paragraph 2(a) of
this Decree or after all persons on the eligibility list established pursuant to paragraph 2(a) of this Decree have been offered
certification for the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department and have had a period of five (5) business
days within which to accept or reject such certification.
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*23 (d) In the event that all preferred minority positions are not filled from the register established by examination plan
number 8326, the same procedure will be followed on succeeding examination plans until all such twenty (20) preferred
positions are filled by minority applicants.
3. That the defendants herein, their successors in office, agents, servants and employees, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them, are enjoined from enforcing the provisions of Minnesota Statutes § 197.45 and the provisions of the
Minneapolis City Charter, chapter 19, sections 7 and 15, insofar as such enforcement is in conflict with the Order of the
Court contained in paragraph one (1) of this Decree.
4. That the defendants Gallagher, Canfield, Glover, Proctor, and White, their successors in office, agents, servants, and
employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with them, shall reopen the application period for the next
examination for the position of fire fighter for the primary purpose of receiving applications from Blacks, American Indians,
or Spanish-surnamed-American persons for a period of two weeks to commence forth-with upon the completion and
implementation of the affirmative recruitment program required pursuant to paragraph five (5) of this Decree.
5. That the defendants herein, their successors in office, agents, servants, and employees, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them, shall prepare and submit to the Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff-intervenor, no
later than two weeks from the date of this Decree, a plan for affirmative action for the recruitment of Black, American Indian,
and Spanish-surnamed-American persons for the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department, which plan
shall include:
(a) Provision for the active participation in such affirmative action program of all the defendants in this action,
(b) Provision for consultation by the defendants herein and members of the staff of the Minneapolis Civil Service
Commission with representatives of the City and community agencies and groups which have direct contact with the
minority community in Minneapolis, and
(c) Provision for pretest tutoring sessions involving personnel from the Civil Service Commission staff and from the
Minneapolis Fire Department, and
(d) Provisions for the maximum feasible use of all communication media most likely to reach the minority community in
Minneapolis, and
(e) Incorporation in the promotional material used, including all advertising used, of a statement referring to the Court’s
Order granting a minority preference as set forth in paragraph one (1) of this Decree, a statement regarding all changes made
in examination plan number 8326 as set forth in paragraph seven (7) of this Decree, and a statement regarding the availability
of pretest tutoring sessions established pursuant to paragraph 5(c) of this Decree.
6. That the defendants Gallagher, Canfield, Glover, Proctor and White, their successors in office, agents, servants, and
employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with them, shall not give examinations pursuant to the
Minneapolis Civil Service Commission examination plan number 8326 until the following action has been taken:
*24 (a) The written examination for fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department given pursuant to said examination
plan has been validated by procedures commensurate with those set forth in the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
Guidelines on Employment Testing Procedures set forth in 35 F. R. 12333, et seq. (Aug. 1, 1970), [CCH EMPLOYMENT
PRACTICES GUIDE, P 16,904] 29 C. F. R. §§ 1607.1 to 1607.14, and
(b) The Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff-intervenor have been given copies of said written examination
for fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department and copies of all reports, including a resume of any oral reports, which
are made by the defendants, their employees, or any consultant working with them, regarding validation studies of said
written examination, provided that such copies of said written examination and such copies of said reports may be given to
the Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff-intervenor subject to a protective order in a form approved by the
Court, and
(c) Counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff-intervenor have been given notice at least two weeks prior to the date scheduled
for administration of said written examination, and
(d) All action required by paragraphs four (4), five (5), seven (7) and eight (8) of this Decree has been completed.
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7. The defendants Gallagher, Canfield, Glover, Proctor, and White, their successors in office, agents, servants, and
employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with them, shall make the following permanent changes in the
Minne-apolis Civil Service Commission fire fighter examination plan number 8326 and all subsequent examination plans:
(a) Delete therefrom any reference to the applicant’s arrest record, and
(b) Incorporate in said fire fighter examination plan provisions to the effect that:
(i) no person will be rejected as an applicant for the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department by reason
of the conviction of any felony or felonies at any time prior to five years from the date of application or by reason of the
conviction of any misdemeanor or misdemeanors at any time prior to two years from the date of application, provided that
the applicant was not incarcerated upon the conviction of any felony or misdemeanor during said five or two year periods,
and
(ii) no person will be rejected as an applicant for the position of fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department by reason
of the conviction of any felony, misdemeanor, or other criminal act, or the conviction of felonies, misdemeanors, or other
criminal acts, except upon a written finding by the Civil Service Commission after notice to the applicant and an opportunity
to respond in person or in writing that
a. the act or acts upon which such convictions were based, considering the circumstances in which it occurred, involve
behavior from which it can reasonably be inferred that such applicant cannot adequately fulfill the duties of a fire fighter with
the Minneapolis Fire Department.
*25 (c) Delete from said fire fighter examination plan the requirement that an applicant must have a high school diploma or a
G. E. D. certificate by the time he is hired, provided that an entering fireman may be required within two years of entering
upon duty to obtain a high school diploma or a G. E. D. equivalency certificate, and
(d) Change the minimum age requirement as stated in said fire fighter examination plan from twenty years to eighteen years,
and change the maximum age limit from thirty years to thirty-five years, provided that the maximum age may be reduced to
thirty at such time as there are twenty Blacks, American Indians and Spanish-surnamed-Americans employed by the
Minneapolis Fire Department.
8. That the defendants, their successors in office, agents, servants, and employees, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them, shall
(a) refrain from requesting or considering any information regarding an applicant’s arrest record when determining the
eligibility of an applicant for a position with the Minneapolis Fire Department, and
(b) incorporate all the changes ordered in Minneapolis Civil Service Commission fire fighter examination plan number 8326
pursuant to paragraph seven (7) of this Decree in all information, pamphlets, announcements or other material utilized as part
of the affirmative recruitment program undertaken pursuant to paragraph five (5) of this Decree.
9. That the defendants herein, their successors in office, agents, servants, and employees, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them, shall
(a) within six months of the date of the Order, submit to the Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff-intervenor, a
plan for affirmative action to assure that all recruitment, examination, and hiring practices followed in obtaining employees
for the Minneapolis Fire Department are designed to assure equal employment opportunities for Blacks, American Indians
and Spanish-surnamed-Americans, which affirmative plan shall include procedures commensurate with the Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission Guidelines on Employment Testing Procedures set forth in 35 F. R. 12333, et seq.
(Aug. 1, 1970), 29 C. F. R. §§ 1607.1-1607.14 to insure that all examinations given to applicants for employment with the
Minneapolis Fire Department are validated to insure that they do not discriminate against Blacks, American Indians, and
Spanish-surnamed-Americans, and that the results obtained will provide a reasonable prediction of job performance with the
Minneapolis Fire Department, and
(b) to report forthwith to the Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff intervenor the number and names of all
Blacks, American Indians, and Spanish-surnamed-Americans who are certified as fire fighters pursuant to fire fighter
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examination number 8326, and
(c) to report forthwith to the Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and plaintiff-intervenor the names of all Black, American
Indian, and Spanish-surnamed-American applicants who are not found eligible for certification as fire fighters with the
Minneapolis Fire Department or who, after being found eligible for such certification, are not in fact certified at any time
when eligible candidates are being certified, together with a statement as to the reasons for the failure to find such applicants
eligible or the failure to certify them, and
*26 (d) to report forthwith to the Court and counsel for the plaintiffs and the plaintiff intervenor the name of any Black,
American-Indian, or Spanish-surnamed-American applicant for fire fighter with the Minneapolis Fire Department who,
having been certified for such employment, subsequently is dismissed or who subsequently terminates his employment,
together with a statement as to the reason for such dismissal or termination.
10. That the Court shall maintain continuing jurisdiction of this action.
11. That, a request having been made by the Court to the Chief Judge of the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals pursuant to 28
U. S. C. §§ 2281 and 2284(1) for the convening of a three judge district court to determine the constitutionality of the
five-year State and local durational residency requirement incorporated into the definition of “veteran” in subdivision (1) of
Minnesota Statutes § 197.45, the defendants Gallagher, Canfield, Glover, Proctor, and White, their successors in office,
agents, servants, and employees, and all persons in active concert or participation with them, are hereby temporarily
restrained, pursuant to the provisions of 28 U. S. C. § 2284(3), from denying the veterans preference available pursuant to
Minnesota Statutes § 197.45 to any applicant for employment in the classified service of the City of Minneapolis by reason of
said applicant’s failure to satisfy the State and local durational residency requirement incorporated into the definition of
“veteran” in subdivision (1) of Minnesota Statutes § 197.45.

Parallel Citations
3 Fair Empl.Prac.Cas. (BNA) 692, 3 Empl. Prac. Dec. P 8205
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